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SUPPLEMENT
TO

HISTOEY OF BOTTISHAM.

NOTES AND ADDITIONS.

p. 5, line 22. Add, In 1871, 1653, giving Bottisham 808 and

Bottisham Lode 845.

P. 6, line 25. Fo7' vert. And, 7'ead vert, and

P. 6. Add, Bights of fairs and markets were granted by charter

of Henry III. to Eichard de Clare. In 16 Ed. III. the tolls were

Jet for Easter and Michaelmas Term at 3s. See Minister's Accounts,

Honor of Clare, and Bemembrance of muniments of Philippa, wife of

Edmond Mortimer, Add. MSS. 6041, fol. 92 b.

P. 10. Add, The Enclosure Act is 41 Geo. III. cap. 127: the

Drainage Act 59 Geo. III. cap. 78.

P. 11, line 16. JS^ote. In 1865 the deanery of Camps was divided

into North and South Camps. Bottisham belongs to the former divi-

sion, and the parishes in this deanery are transferred to the jurisdic-

tion of the archdeaconry of Ely.

P. 13, line 4. Crucified. ^cZc/, Or according to another and more

probable theory the centre line of the chaucel was made to point

towards the part of the horizon where the sun rose on the feast of

dedication.

P. 20, line 14. I find that I have fallen here into error. There

were no chauntries founded in Bottisham church, but at the end of

the north and south aisles there were probably altars. The chapel

"newly built," referred to in the Patent Rolls, was the free chapel

standing within the memory of the last generation near old Bottisham

Hall, described on p. 88. By a deed of Wm. Alington, dated from
his manor of Bottisham, March 26, 1477, he, the said Wm. Alington,

mentions that the prior and convent of Anglesey were exonerated
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from finding two secular chaplains for Elizabeth de Burgh so long as

they celebrated, one at the altar of the Holy Cross in the church of

Anglesey, and the other at the chapel in Botsham, every day for the

king and queen and Wm. Alington and Joane his wife. Now he

releases them of this obligation and binds them both to celebrate at

Anglesey. Then follows the agreement of John Prior of Anglesey,

stating that the two canons should be exonerated of all other emj^loy

except masses, and were to receive weekly fourteen-pence between

them besides what they received as canons. Dated Anglesey, March

28. The ratification of the Bishop follows with no date attached.

P. 28, line 17. These arches and the intervening spaces w^ere

partially repaii^ed in 1877.

P. 30, line 32. Subjoined is a correct version of this inventory.

The words in italics are in a later handwriting. ''Ecclesia de Bote-

kesham appropriata Priori de Anglesey et habet vicarium et taxatur

ad XXX marcas et solvit pro synodo iJ5. et iiijcZ., procur' xviijd, pro

den. Beati Petri x\d., et sunt ejus ornamenta hec, vj paria vestimen-

torum quorum tres sunt cum tunicis et dalmaticis iij caj^pe chori

quorum j de novo cum tunicis et dalmaticis, vij superpellicia, j rocheta,

velum templi, j missale, iij antiphon' bona cum ij psalteriis et gz^a^zior

psalteria per se, tria gradalia cum troperiis, ep'lar', martyrologium, ij

manualia, j
portiforium, una legenda in duobus voluminibus, iij calices,

iiij frontalia, una crux enea, pix eburnea, crismatorium bonum (ebur-

neum), iiij phiole, j lanterna, turibulum, fons cum serrura, quinque

paria corporalium, una casula et U7ia alba de novo data, ij haudehjns

ex dono Dni Andree capellani {inodo tunica et dalmatica) cu7n stolis

duahus et fanyins WiUi Mareschalli et una casida ex dono Wi-tti le

Hert, j pannus de serico de dono Elye de Bekynham, jycir frontalium,

j par corporalkmi cum deJJi^iis de perlis ex dono Joh. Zouch arm.

Item una nova capa chori precio marc ex dono Wi'H'i Gode defunct.'"

^yfanyins are meant phanons. Caius Coll. Library MSS. 204, fol. 65.

P. 34, line 21. Eoss, Judges of England, gives the dates of his

appointments thus:—1274, Just. it. appointment probably cancelled;

1275, Serjeant; 1276, Justice of assize, keeper of records and writs of

common pleas; 1285, Judge of common pleas; 1305, retired or died.

P. 35, line 8. Read, that it was indebted to him for a silken cloth.

P. 43, line 1. For Swafi'ham Bulbeck, read Swaflfham Prior.

P. 43. Add, On the north wall of the chancel is a brass plate

affixed, notifying that the stained-glass window at the east end and

the reredos beneath it were erected in memory of Col. Soame Gambier

Jenyns, who died Nov. 26, 1873. The stained-glass window is by
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Clayton and Bell, and the handsome reredos built of cluncli and

purbeck marble, as well as the early English window above it, are

from the designs of Mr Arthur W. Blomfield, the architect. For

a further account of Col. Jenyns, see note to page 127.

P. 48, line 2. It is not unfitting here to record the death of a

veteran soldier. June 17, 1874, died James Pamplin, at the ripe old

age of 97. At the early age of 18 he enlisted into the SOthfoot. He
went through the Peninsular War, and was present at the battles of

Salamanca, Badajoz, and Fuentes D'Onor, for which he received in

1848 from Her Majesty a medal with three clasps. He was also

present at the battle of Waterloo, but his regiment was not engaged.

In 1817 he received his discharge, and was then granted a pension of

Q>d. a day. This was subsequently increased to Is. 6c?. a day, but in

the same year he died, having full possession of his faculties almost to

the last.

P. 48, line 8. The following is a corrected list of Rectors and

Vicars.

Pectors. Hugh, son of Augustln and Eluina his wife.

Richard de la Lade, son of Hugh de la Lade, occ. 1222 A.D.

Vicars. John, occ. Ap. 28, 1251.

Symon (formerly vicar), occ. May 25, 1287.

1324. pres. Richard Freehurn, c. 1306 v. of Fulbourn, Hoxne,

Suffolk, and Thorpe, Norfolk.

1338. Dec. 11, adm. Adam Canon, of Longstanton.

Bartholomeio Peryn, 1341.

Adam, 1344.

Thomas, occ. 1346.

1349. June 5, pres. William de Wykkewan.

John Gurteys.

1350. May 7, adm. Wm. Knott, called also Wm. Saleman and

Wm. de Salmon, occ. in 1379, Mar. 23.

TFm. Marshall, died 1393.

1393. Dec. 2, adm. Robert Aleyn, res. in 1395; 1349 adm. V. of

Meldreth, and occurs there in 1379. See also Plac. Cant. 18 Pic. II.

No. 30, Pex V. P. de Anglesey and Pobert Aleyn, Clerk de present,

ad vie. de Botekesham. Judic. de non pros, per defectum narrandi.

1395. May 6, adm. Johi Bertelot, res. in 1398; exchanged with

Nich. Hale for P. of Stanway, Essex; 1400, P. of St Nicholas, Col-

chester; 1406, V. of Thurrock Parva, Essex, and Feltham, Middlesex,

one of which he resigned; 1383, V. of Abington Magna.

1398. Mar. 6, Nicholas Hale, resigned.

1^2
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1399. Ap. 30, Nicholas Baynard.

Wm. Spencer, d. in 1464.

1464. Sept. 18, pres. Robert Knight. In 1463 cap. stip. de

Anglesey, receiving 9 marks.

Bartholomeio Rodswell, 1506.

TT''m. Breton, res. Mar. 17, 1534—5; occurs in 1518 and 1552 as

Y. of Dullingham.

1535. Mar. 17, pres. Mar. 28, adm. Thos. Moodye, resigned.

1542. Nov. 17, pres. Nov. 22, adm. Wm. Walker, presented by

the Master and Scholars of King's Hall. See Harl. MSS. No. 4115,

p. 6, a letter announcing his resignation, dated Sept. 17, 1552. July

9, 1538, pres. to Y. of Wilbraham Magna, dep. in 1556.

1552—3. Jan. 27, comp. John Gildarte. In Aug. 1552, cur. of

Wilbraham Magna.

1553. May 10, comp. Robert Roohe, d. 1557.

John Wright, occ. Oct. 16, 1557.

John Cooke, occ. Mar. 13, 1566.

1573. Sept. 24, adm. Baldwin Easdall, or Esdale or Eastdale,

resigned. Fellow of Pembroke Coll.; 1569—1599, K. of Orton

Waterville; 1580—1586, E. of Chesterton, Hunts; 1589—1599,11.

of Haddon, Hunts, where he was buried.

1575. Jan. 6, pres. Christopher Jeniver, died 1611.

1611. Oct. 21, inst. Wm. Barton, resigned; 1602—1603, Y. of

Trumpington.

1613. Comp. Thomas Kechin or Kitchin, resigned. B.D.; 1611—2,

Y. of Trumpington.

1617—8, Mar. 15, adm. Thomas Coote.

1619. Ap. 17, comp. Anthony Topharn; 1616, Dec. 16, comp. Y. of

Trumpington; 1619, Aug. 23, comp. Y. of Barrington ; 1547, July 14,

comp. Anthony Topham,N. of Pampisford. Qu. The same man or his

father.

1619—20. Feb. 19, comp. Samuel Sackvile; 1622, Ap. 9, comp.

Y. of Trumpington.

1620. Mar. 29, comp. Richard Watts, res. 1630, Ap. 26, comp.

Y. of Chesterton, where he was buried Aug. 5, 1661.

1630. Sept. 13, adm. Thomas Medhope.

1631. Comp. Dr George Helton or Eenton; 1627, cur. of St Peter

ad castrum; 1635, Aug. 28, comp. Y. of Lollworth.

1633. Dr Gidson.

1634—5. Mar. 7, adm. George Chamberlain', 1642, R. of Dux-

ford St Peter; 1662, Sept. 22, adm. P. of Orwell.
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1635. May 28, aclm. George Heton. 1 same as Henton preceding.

1638. June 13, adm. comp. in Oct. Edward Barton, B.D.

1640. Oct. 15, adm. Theodore Orossland; 1636, Oct. 15, comp.

"V. of Trumpington. See also note in the text.

1650. Thomas Walker, presented by Parliament.

Bichard Britten, occurs in 1655. In 1650, curate ofWest Wickham.

Wtti. Rashleigh, to 1693.

1693. Jonathan Smith.

1693. Gostwick.

1696. Abraham Jordan.

Roger Fame, D.D.

Edward Bathurst, occ. 1708; 1693—4, Feb. 14, adm. V. of Ches-

terton; 1695, Nov. 23, adm. Y. of Trumpington.

JohnCraister, D.D., occ. 1716; 1722, Aug. 2, adm.V. of Chesterton.

Thomas Paine, occ. 1725.

Joseph Bavies, occ. 1758 ; R. of Barton Mills, Suffolk, Y. of Great

"Wilbraham, curate of Swaffham Bulbeck. Died 1763; buried at

Bottisham.

1763. Dec, adm. Thomas Waterworth, resigned.

1763. Michael Lort, resigned. 1759, Regius Professor of Greek.

1770. Thomas Spencer, resigned.

1771. Christopher Hodgson, res. % same as Christopher Hodgson,

LL.B.; 1791—1849, P. of Marholm, curate of Castor, Hunts. Died

1849; buried at Marholm, monumental tablet, north wall.

1773. Robert Hilton, res.

1773. John Cranhe, res. ; 1784, cur. of St Mary the Great; 1792,

Y. of Shudy Camps.

1783. Wm. Lort Mansel, res.; 1788, Y. of Chesterton; 1789,

R of Foulmire; 1798, Master of Trinity College, 1808, Bishop of

Gloucester and Bristol.

1790. Thomas Gilhank, res. P. of Dickleburgh.

1796—7. Feb. 7, adm. Harry Porter, res.; 1801—22, Y. of

Enfield.

1801. Nov. 12, adm. Matthew Raine, D.D., 1791—1811, Head

Master^ of the Charter House, London.

1812. Feb. 18, adm. William Pugh, M.A. Died 1825; buried

at Bottisham, mural tablet, south wall of chancel.

1825. Jo/m ^roM;w,M.A., 1830— 42, Yice-MasterofTrinity College.

1 Among his pupils were Baron Alderson, George Grots (the Historian),

General Havelock, Bishop Thirlwall, Dean Waddington, <^c.
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1837. Thomas Musgrave, D.D.; 1837, Bishop of Hereford; 1847,

Arclibp. of York.

1837. John Hailstone, M.A., res., presented by the Queen;

1863, Dean of Camps. Died 1871 ; buried at Bottisham Lode.

Monument in churchyard, south side.

1861. John Brown MacGlellan, M.A., Fell, of Trinity College;

1871, Bural Dean of North Camps.

P. 51. Richard atte Slough. Add, and 1379.

Thos. Fitz Richard. Add, and 1379.

RoheH Aleyn. Add, and chaplain of Anglesey, 1379.

Spendlove. For 1619 read 1619—21, son of Thos. Spendlove,

Alderman of Norwich, and his wife Margaret, adm. cccc, 1617, 1618;

Fell. 1620, M.A. 1619, resigned fellowship, and had the following

children baptized in Bottisham: Margaret, Feb. 17, 1619—20;

Thomas, Mar. 18, 1620— 1; it. of Eccles juxta mare; 1661, of

Hemstead, Norfolk; died Yicar of Beddingham, 1666.

P. 52. Samuel Charlton. Add, afterwards Y. of Friday Bridge,

and Rector of Tydd St Giles.

P. 53. Add, In 1345, Bp. Montacute grants letters dimissory

to Poger Fitz John le Chapman de Bodekesham to all sacred orders;

1348, Jan. 7, Thomas Dykeman de Bodekesham, deacon, is to be

ordained priest.

The following is all that is to be discovered of obit lands in

Bottisham. Patent Polls, 3 Ed. YI. p. 9, to Richard Yenables and

John Maynerde, grant of 3 roods of arable land in the tenure ofThomas

Thomson, given for obits, guilds, or lamps ; also. Patent Rolls 4 Ed.

YI. p. 4, to "Wm. Morice, of Chipping Ongar, and Edw. Isaac, of Well,

Kent, one cottage or tenement in Bottisham, now or late in the tenure

of the guardians of the church, given for anniversaries, valued at

35. M. at 10 years' purchase, equal to 33s. 4d Cf. also Pat. 14

Eliz. p. 2, Mar. 8, grant to Richard Hill and Wm. James, 15 acres

1 rood in the tenure of Matthew Challice, late of the priory of Anglesey,

also 2 crofts of arable land containing 1 acre and a-half in the parish

in the tenure of Matthew Challice, given for the maintenance of a

priest to celebrate mass.

The following is all that is known of guilds in Bottisham. In 1

2

Ric. II. a return of all guilds was ordered to be sent to the Treasury,

witli particulars of their statutes and goods : a short extract is annexed

relating to Bottisham.

I. Guild of the Holy Trinity. Certificate of Walter Rous, Warden.

This guild was founded before the memory of man for the purpose
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of finding wax at the image of the Holy Trinity in the parish church

on feast days, the repair of the building and renewal of vestments,

books and ornaments, and for the relief of the poor while resting

under ecclesiastical censure. The statutes enjoin the brethren to

meet and hear mass on the eve and feast-day of the Holy Trinity.

The warden is bound at these services to ojQfer one penny out of his

private means, while each brother and sister offers one halfpenny or

one farthing. After service a dinner is to be held. When one of

the members of the guild dies a mass is to be celebrated, and each

member is to give to the poor one halfpenny. The warden shall

hold office at the pleasure of the guild. On entry into the fraternity

each member shall give 4 bushels of barley or 2^ lbs. of wax. The

members shall not be bound by oath to observe the statutes. There

is no property belonging to the guild save 225. in the hands of Wm.
Sitoler and John Coupere of Bottisham, brethren of the said guild,

which money is to be expended on the light, &c. ; for all the money

went last year to provide new vestments and ornaments, the old ones

having been stolen.

II. Guild of the Nativity of the Blessed Yii'gin Mary. Certifi-

cate of the same Walter Hous, Warden. This guild was founded

and constituted as the guild of the Holy Trinity. For the same

cause there are no possessions, but there are chattels of value of

G45. 10;Jt/. in the hands of Walter Kous, Robert Aleyn, Beginald

Leverington, John Hervy, senr., John Katisson, and Thomas Gerard.

III. Guild of Corpus Christi. Thomas Mittylweye, Warden.

Chattels of the value of 30s. in the hands of Thomas Mittylweye and

John Norman, and no more for the above cause. The guild was

to find 13 wax lights, each of J lb. of wax, on the eve and feast of

Corpus Christi, and at the obsequies of a brother or sister.

IV. Guild of All Saints. Wm. Osbern, Warden. Founded

and constituted as the guild of the Holy Trinity. Chattels, 35s. lOd.

in the hands of Wm. Osbern, John Jemes, John Hert, John Persan,

junr., Wm. Kugrale, Wm. Butt, John Noble, and John Scut,

and no more for the above cause.

Y. Guild of St Nicholas. Robt. Passelewe, Warden. Founded

and constituted as the guild of the Holy Trinity. Chattels, 57s. 4:d.

in the hands of Robert Passelewe, Wm. Sitoler, Wm. Melman, and

John Pope, and no more for the above cause. The guild was to find

13 wax lights, of ^ lb. of wax, on the eve and feast of St Nicholas,

before the altar of St Nicholas in the church aforesaid, and at the

obsequies of a brother or sister.
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VI. Guild of St Peter. Wm. Sitoler, Warden. Founded and

constituted as the guild of the Holy Trinity. Chattels, 20^. 8^^. in

the hands of Wm. Syteler, John Drawswerd, senr., Peter Bere,

Wm. Millevveye, Wm. Martyn, and Wm. Bunte, and no more for

the above cause.

YII. Guild of St James. John Christmasse, Warden. Founded

and constituted as the guild of the Holy Trinity. Chattels, 10^. in

the hands of John Christmasse, John Bowyer, and John Skeuale,

and no more for the above cause. Vide Chancery Miscellaneous

Records, Tower, No. 309, File 8, No. 81.

The records of guilds for the whole county of Cambridge are not

entire, but of those that remain we observe that more guilds are

mentioned in Bottisham than any other place except the towns of

Cambridge and Ely. The only altar mentioned here besides that

of Holy Trinity, which was presumably the High Altar, is that

dedicated to St Nicholas. Had a great robbery taken place just

before this, or did the parishioners with cunning forethought put

away their vestments and ornaments into safe keeping and buy

fresh ones in order to keep the money in their hands ?

P. 55, line 24. Since the above was written a School-board was

formed for Bottisham and its hamlets. The members were Pev. J. B.

MacClellan, chairman; Rev. J. A. Bonser, Messrs E. Newman,
J. B. Paul and E. Smith ; Mr T. Ennion, returning officer ; F. Grain,

Esq. solicitor, clerk ; Messrs John Mortlock and Co. bankers,

treasurers. In May, 1875, the Board consisted of Messrs J. B. Paul,

E. Smith, Sam. Fyson, and Pevs. J. A. Bonser and J. B. MacClellan

;

F. Grain, Esq. resigned, and E. Foster, Esq. became clerk. Subse-

quently the Pevs. J. A. Bonser and J. B. MacClellan resigned, and

Messrs John Dennis Paul and Ed. Newman were elected.

P. 55, line 36. Note. In the year 1819 a chapel was built, of

which the Rev. Richard Kent was pastor. Previous to this services

w^ere held in a private house belonging to Mr Thomas Dennis, now
the residence of Mr J. B. Paul. In May, 1850, the Rev. R. Kent

died, and the Rev. Thomas Woods succeeded to his office. In 1862

Mr V/isbey became the minister, and during his pastorate, in 1868,

the new chapel was erected. In January, 1869, Mr Wisbey resigned,

and in September the Pi,ev. E. H. Simj^son was appointed. He
resigned in January, 1871, and was followed by the Rev. Alfred

Richardson, who died in July, 1873. In April, 1874, the present

pastor, the Rev. J. D. Thane, succeeded him.

P. 57, line 9. Citchinman or Kitchinman. In 1656 appointed
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commissioner of Parliament for the town of Cambridge (Robert

Hamond was appointed for the county) for an assessment upon
England at the rate of XG0,000 by the month for 3 months. Vide
Scobell, Acts and Ordinances, p. 402.

P. 59, line 2. These stables have since been pulled down.

Of Antiquities found at Bottisham we may notice, in the posses-

sion of the Cambridge Ant. Soc, a Roman tile from Bottisham, and
a palstave. At the meeting of the same society, Feb. 23, 1874,

Mr Deck presented and exhibited a bronze looped socket celt, or-

namented with parallel longitudinal lines, found at Bottisham Lode,

Dec. 1873.

P. 59, line 13. In 1876 H. WHkinson, Esq. of Upper Hare
Park, commenced opening some of these barrows. 1. Situated in a

field not far from his gate, overlooking Bottisham : result, many
calcined bones and flints, among which a borer and various urns,

including both a monota and a diota. 2. That on the extreme top

of Allington hill : result, 2 graves about 3' 6" or 4' x 3', in one of

which was a fine gold fibula of circular form and richly ornamented :

at equal distances near the circumference were four knobs of a white

composite material set with garnets. A tumulus lower down, close

to Six Mile Bottom and Westley Green droveway, had been opened

previously by the late Prof Henslow. There remain some others

lying in a line drawn from S.E. to N.W.
P. 61, line 1. Note. For a full account of the inquiry into the

Bottisham charities held in the national school by the Charity Com-
missioners, see Camh. Chron. June 4, 1870. From this account

we are enabled to comj)lete the history of these charities.

I. Pledger's charity. Thos. Pledger by will gave <£40 to be

bestowed in freehold lands, the rent to be bestowed upon eight poor

people and ancient inhabitants. By indenture dated June 26, 1738,

the vicar, churchwardens and overseers demised 11 acres of arable

land in Bottisham, vested in them and their successors, at the rent

of £6. IO5. Under the inclosure, 21a. 2 r. 19 p. were allotted in

lieu of freehold lands and right of common. This land was free from

tithe, land, and drainage taxes, and was let in equal moieties to

John King and Mary Poulter as yearly tenants at the rent of

.£12. 12s. for the whole. Subsequently this charity was adminis-

tered with Craister's, and applied to four poor people, or pensioners,

who received £1. 55. quarterly.

II. Bream's charity. In 1837 the parish, instead of sending

three poor men to reside in these almshouses, received £2 by way
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of rent for their dwellings and <£24 for their stipends. In 1870

£52. is. was received annually from East Ham by the trustees.

III. Salishury's clmrity. On the inclosure two allotments,

containing respectively 2 a. Or. 24 p., 4a. Or. 15 p., were made in

lieu of freehold lands and common rights. In 1870 this charity

produced £11, and after various deductions £4. 18s. ^d. was given

to each of their national schools at Bottisham and Bottisham Lode.

IV. Toion close. In 1857 the following report was made : "A
small piece of pasture land, containing 3 r. 30 p. situate near the

Swan Inn, in this parish, is let to the trustees of the late Mr John

King for £2. 7s. per annum. The rent has from time immemorial

been carried into the poor's rates ; there are no documents nor any

tradition relating to its origin. It is about to be sold under the Poor

Law Amendoient Act." In 1870 it was stated that the close was

sold under the sanction of the Poor Law Board for the purpose of

supplying the requisite funds, due from the parish towards the build-

ing of the Union workhouse. The charity therefore ceased to exist.

May this have been Childe's benefaction mentioned in the register 1

V. Clench''s charity. The report of 1857 mentions that Mary

Clench by will dated Sept. 29, 1711, devised a messuage in Little

Wilbraham, and 11 acres of pasture and half an acre of land thereto

adjoining, to her husband, John Clench, and his heirs upon trust to

pay the sum of X5 yearly to the churchwardens and overseers of

Bottisham for apprenticing poor children.

YI. Jenyns's free school. The indenture pro^dding for this

charity bears date May 1, 1730.

YII. ShephearcVs charity. The deed of indenture is dated

Peb. 22, 1739.

VIII. Craister''s gift. According to the report of 1837, by in-

dentures of lease and release, the release being dated Jan. 12, 1744,

Wm. Ames, in consideration of £17. lOs., being part of the legacy

given by the will of the Bev. John Craister, conveyed to seven

trustees and their heirs a messuage or tenement then divided into

two in Lode Street, Bottisham, upon trust, &c. &c. to place therein

such poor persons as they and the survivor or his heirs should appoint.

The will of Dr Craister is at Somerset House. This charity was

afterwards given away with Pledger's.

IX. Mott's charity. The indenture is dated Oct. 1, 1762.

X. Mrs Jenyns^ charity. Her will was dated Jan. 18, 1794,

and a codicil Feb. 10, 1796.

XI. PurjKs charity. The will is dated Mar. 8, 1825, and the
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charity is supposed to comprise all receipts from the living during

his incumbency.

XII. Fooi'^s fen. The history of this charity dates from the

Charity Commissioners' report of 1837. It is there stated as follows :

Ou the inclosure, 217 a. 2r. 3 p. of fen land were allotted to the poor of
Bottisham. They are divided on the map into four parcels, containing re-

spectively 96 a. 3 r. 37 p. ; 43 a. 1 r. 55 p. ; 69 a. 1 r. 3 p. ; 7 a. 3 r. 8 p.

The two last parcels are now thrown together, and consist of three pieces,
called the White Fen, Fen Head, and North White Fen.

The poor of the adjoining parish of Stow-cum-Quy claim a right of inter-

commoning in the second and third, and contribute one-half towards the
Eau brink drainage tax. The poor of Fen Ditton and Horniugsea claim a right

of common in the fourth, but the latter alone contributes to the Eau brink tax,

which amounts to about 9<i. per acre on the whole. An allotment has been
made to the Commissioners in lieu of the tax called the drainage tax.

The fen is enjoyed by all the settled poor, who dig turf and cut stover, under
the control of the reeves, appointed by the parish. The whole would average
about IO5. an acre to let. In 1819 a schedule was delivered to Henry King,
then overseer and churchwarden, stating the amount of the arrear of taxes
on the whole, and that unless they were paid in a limited time the com-
missioners of di-ainage would proceed to a sale of the land. The inhabitants
at large were not apprised of the notice, and the property was put up to auction,
when Mr King himself was declared the purchaser, at the price of £72 for

the whole, and a conveyance was executed to him by three several sets of

indentures of lease and release for the three pieces. The releases were all

dated 19 Nov. 1819, but no trusts whatsoever were declared in them.
Mr King having subsequently warned off several of the parishioners, legal

proceedings against him were threatened by the parish, when he stated that
he would give up his bargain on being reimbursed the payments he had made
to Mr Lemon, agent to the commissioners of drainage, amounting altogether
to £183. 4s.

On inquiry it appeared that the amount of taxes due, for which the sale

was made, was only £58. 12.5. \d. and consequently that the charges for raising
that sum were £128. lis. Wd. Mr Lemon's bill amounted to no less than
£113. 6s. hd. The matter was referred to arbitration, and by the award it

was determined, that £148. 5s. ^d. only should be paid by the inhabitants of

the parish to Mr King, out of which were to be deducted the sums of money
received by him on account of the land, and that £34. 18s. ^d. should be re-

funded by Mr Lemon to Mr King, who should declare himself a trustee of the
premises, and deliver up the title deeds to the churchwardens and overseers
and another. By indenture, dated Nov. 2, 1833, between Henry King of the
one part, the churchwardens and overseers of the several parishes of Bottisham,
Quy, and Horningsea of the other part, reciting the proceedings before men-
tioned, and the payment by Wm. Lemon of £34. 18s. 6(Z. , and by the parties

of the second part of £148. 5s. 6fZ., the said Henry King declared that he and
his hens, and every person claiming any estate in the premises through
or under him, should convey them, with their appurtenances, on request,

to the use of, or in trust for the parties of the second part, in trust for the
inhabitants of the said parishes respectively, in such shares and proportions
as they had theretofore held, used, or enjoyed the same : and that, until such
request or conveyance made, he would hold them upon the same trusts.

The Eau brink drainage tax, which now amounts to £8. 14s. per annum,
is paid by subscription.

During the enquiry in 1870 it was stated that there was no

deed forthcoming, but in 1834 the churchwardens and overseers
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exercised the riglit of ownership over the commons and also once

since, viz. in 1864. Books were then produced from the police

station by Inspector Greig, shewing that in that year certain parties

were summoned for taking coprolites, and were each convicted and

fined. Fen reeves were appointed, but what their duties were

seemed not very clear, except to repair certain fen roads.

Since 1864 several attempts were made by the Vicar (Rev. J. B.

MacClellan) and others to get a scheme and new trust, but failed,

owing to inability to produce the deed or copy of deed of 1833 above

referred to, in which Mr King undertook to reconvey the property

to the parish officers. In 1876, however, a duly attested copy was

found with the churchwardens of Quy, upon which a parish meeting

was held at Bottisham, and it was resolved to request Mr H. King

to execute the reconveyance. A formal request was then made and

the reconveyance executed on Oct. 14, 1876. On the first of Nov.

1876 an application was made to the Charity Commissioners by the

Rev. J. B. MacClellan, Edward Kewman, John King, junr., Richard

Ambrose, and John Bradford Paul, forwarding the above-mentioned

document, and asking for a scheme and order. This order was made

on Nov. 20, 1877, but it only applies to the property in which

Bottisham alone is concerned, viz. one piece of 96 a. 3r. 37 p. and

the other of 69 a. 1 r. 3 p. By this order the following trustees were

appointed :—the vicars of Bottisham and Bottisham Lode, the owner of

Bottisham Hall, if resident, official trustees : and the following non-

official trustees, viz. Richard Ambrose, farmer, Bottisham ; Wm. Cole

Ambrose, farmer, Quy; John King, junr., farmer, Bottisham;

Wm. King, farmer, Bottisham Lode ; Robert Lucas, surgeon, Bot-

tisham ; Edward Newman, farmer, Bottisham ; Charles Parker,

farmer, Bottisham Lode ; and John Bradford Paul, farmer, Bot-

tisham. It was further provided that the income of the said charity,

after payment thereout of all necessary outgoings, and the cost of

fencing, draining, and levelling the ground where requisite, and of

a fair share of all necessary repairs of the Fen Road leading to the

same, should be applied by the trustees exclusively for the benefit of

the poor labouring population of the said parishes of Bottisham and

Bottisham Lode, in manner following, that is to say :—In the esta-

blishment of coal clubs, or the purchase of coal or other fuel in large

quantities, to be retailed at reduced prices to the poor; or in the

promotion of the education of children of both sexes, either by the

payment of the school fees of poor children, or by the establishment

of small scholarships, by which deserving poor children may be
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enabled to remain longer at school, and thus to fit themselves to better

their condition in life ; or in payment of the school fees of any blind

or deaf and dumb child of deserving poor persons residing in the

parish, at any school or schools S23ecially provided for the education

of blind or deaf and dumb children, such fees to include the pay-

ments ordinarily made for providing food, washing, and lodging,

but in no case to exceed for any one child the annual sum of £30,

nor to be continued in any single instance for a period exceeding

seven years. Since this order was made meetings have been held,

the property has been carefully surveyed, the roads staked out, and

already various acre pieces are let.

P. 72, 1. 7. Note. In May, 1650, Cromwell's survey took place.

Among other items occur :

—''Quit-rents of Bottisham, £9. 14s. 7 Jo?.

Common fine due to the Lord from the tenants payable at Easter =

per annum, 65. 8c/."

Honor of Richmond. " Mem. there is a court which is in the

nature of a court Baron belonging unto the Honor of Clare, and

kept yearly each Monday in Easter week according to the custom

thereof at Bottisham. There is also a court-leet belonging to the

said honor kept at the time and place aforesaid. Mem. that there

was antiently a court for Bichmond Honor but not lately kept, nor

is known where kept, there being only dry rents due unto the said

Honor that we can find out." The surveyors were Wm. Webb,

Thomas Fowle, John Ward.

P. 73, 1. 16. Hugh de Bodehesham. Add, 1198—1208 a.d.

he was official to the Archdeacon and Diocese of Ely. See Cole MSS.

vol. III. fol. ^Q b.

P. 76, 1. 32. We find also that in 1336 A. d., on the Thursday

after the Nativity of the Blessed Virgin Mary, Michael House con-

cluded a fine with a John de Bodekesham of Bletchingley and his

wife Margaret of 2 messuages with their appurtenances in Cambridge.

P. 77, 1. 21. For accolite of Over, read accolite, of Over.

P. 80, 1. 16. Wm. de Bodekesham. Add, In 1382 Bishop of

Pavada, "Navatensis;" in 1385 Bishop of Bethlehem; 1386, trans-

lated to Llandaff. See Stubbs, Registrum Eccl. Anglicance.

P. 84, 1. 1. John de Bodehesham. He died Ap. 17, 1404. See

Stubbs, Registrum Eccl. Anglica^iae.

Add, John de Bottisham, fellow of Pembroke and master of

Peter House, gave to Pembroke Library 2 large and old antiphones

and 2 graduals for the chapel. Also, Super primam secundse ; Super

secundam secundje ; De Christo ; In prima parte summse ; Super
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quai'tiim pastoralem Gregorii. See Camb. Aiit. Soc. Communicatiom,

18G0, p. 14. In 139G, Aug. 3, he was appointed Vicar-general to

Archbishop Arundel. See Eaine, Hist. Paj)ers R. S., p. 426.

P. 85, 1. 2Q. From a return of his expenses it would seem that

he set out on Nov. 4, 1401, and returned Dec. 21, 1402 a.d. See

New Record Office Miscellanea, Q. R. y\^ nuncii.

P. 88, 1. 25. Note. This chapel is the one above referred to,

built by Wm. Allington.

P. 90, n. 2, 1. 2. For P. P. substitute the Rev. Richard Relhan.

P. 94, 1. 27. Rlizabeth Gropley. 1 of the Cropley family of Bourne.

P. 95, 1. 8. Mr Ward died in 1719, aged 44.

P. 97, 1. 2. For Good read Goad.

P. 98, 1. 3. After Exning add Ap. 24, 1748. His will was

dated Feb. 22, 1739.

P. 98, 1. 10. LusJiington, For a complete pedigree of this family

see Berry, County Genealogies, Kent, Rodmersham.

P. 100. Additions to pedigree of Clenche. John, mayor of Cam-

bridf^e in 1663, married Nov. 6, 1660, at Grantchester, Mary,

daughter of Dr Thos. Goad of King's, Rector of Milton. Her will

was dated Sept. 29, 1711. John, son of John C. and Eliz. Cropley,

was buried Mar. 31, 1711. Watson Powell of Hilton married (2)

in May 1747 Mrs Stoughton of Warwick.

P. 104, 1. 29. Thomas de Vans. See " Fines pro exoneratione

militias Thos. de Yaus co. Camb. pro 40s. pro expensis unius sagit-

tarii et ut supra per concilium." Lansdowne MSS., 316 fo., 311 b.

P. 112, 1. 19. For Hugo Funcey read Hugo Frauncez.

P. 114, 1. 19. In 1522, at the Lent Assizes in Cambridge, Sir

John Cutts and Sir Giles Allington died of infection at Cambridge

Castle. See Hall's Chronicle (ed. 1809), p. 632.

P. 114, 1. 29. Ursula Drury. Her brass circa 1530 in Hawsted

church, Suffolk, is figured in Gage, Hundred of Thhigoe.

P. 115, 1. 25. See brass in Little Bradley church, Suffolk.

Thos. Soame, gent., 1606, set. 64 in armour, and wife Elizabeth,

daughter of Robert Allington, with 5 sons and 2 daughters—wife

posuit 1612 quadilateral mural plate. See Haines, Monumental

Brasses, part ii. p. 184.

P. 116, 1. 2. In Lodge, Life of the Ccesar family, there is a

portrait of Sir Gyles Allington, the husband of Dorothy Cecil,

engraved after Cornelius Janssen, dated 1631, half-length. It shews

a long face with a little moustache and a pointed beard ; over the

head is a finely embroidered skull-cap in needlework. The ruff is
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large and richly worked, and the doublet tight fitting. There is also

a portrait from a miniature on copper of Hildebrand, third and last

Lord Allington. It is a small half-length shewing a thin but large

lace collar, a very narrow face and a stumpy head.

Alice Talkarne. Her brass, dated 1605, is in Stoke-by-Clare

church, Suffolk. She was then a widow.

Additions to Allington Pedigree. E-ichard Allington, who married

Jane Cordell, died 1561. There is a mural monument to him, his

wife, and three daughters, in the Rolls Chapel, Chancery Lane,

London.

P. 118, 1. 5. Ralph Jenyns. He was buried at Churchill in

Somersetshire. On a blue stone in the floor of (1) the south aisle,

was a brass of a man and wife and children with this inscription :

" Here lieth Ilalj)he Jenyns esqr. which died the 20 day of April in

the year of our Lord God 1572, and was buried the 27th day of the

same month, leaving behind him Joanne his wife and having by her

8 children, that is, to wit, 5 sons and 3 daughters." There were

several shields of arms, some of which were defaced. Among those

that remained intelligible were: 1, on a chev. 3 lions rampant;

2, Quarterly 1, on a fess 3 bezants; 2, a bull's head erased; 3, 2 bars

charged with 3 martlets each ; 4, as 1. See Collinson's Somersetshire

,

III. 581. His father in law, Ralph Rowlett, or Rowlat, was a mer-

chant of the staple of Calais, and was buried in St Alban's abbey,

where was a brass in the south chancel aisle to him and his wife

Jane, 1519, with 6 daughters; effigy of wife and sons lost, marginal

inscription mutilated ; figured in Bowtell, Mon. Brasses, p. 110. See

Haines, 3£on. Br. part ii. p. 86. (?) Therefore was Rali^h Jenyns a

merchant of the staple also. Also (?) if Ralph Jenyns was son of

Stephen Jenyns who was mayor of London in 1508.

P. 118, 1. 7. purchase, add, of Sir Richard S* Loe, Knt.

P. 119, 1. 20. Frances Jennings. The following description of

her personal appearance is given in the memoirs of the Comte de

Grammont:—Her skin was of the most pearly whiteness ; her hair

a most perfect blond ; a certain sort of vivacity and animation pre-

vented her from looking dull, the ordinary accompaniment of extreme

whiteness ; her mouth, though none of the smallest, was yet the

prettiest in the world. Nature had endowed her with unutterable

charms, the Graces had added a finishing touch ; her cast of counte-

nance being gracious, while her nascent neck matched its hue. In a

word, her figure gave you the idea of Aurora, or one of the goddesses

of Spring, such as the poets themselves present in their most brilliant
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descriptions. But as it would not be fair for one person to possess

all the treasures of beauty without any of the defects, so something

seemed wanting to render her hands and arms worthy of the rest of

her appearance. Her nose was not so delicate as might be imagined,

her eyes were wanting in grace, but her mouth, no less than the

rest of her charms, sent a thrill to the bottom of one's heart. See

Memoires du Comte de Grammont, par M. le Comte Antoine Hamilton,

ed. Horace Walpole, London, 4to. J. Dodsley, 1783, pp. 193, &c.

P. 119, 1. 26. Sarah Jennings, the Atossa in Pope's Satire on

Women, was born at Burwell in Lincolnshire. Her portrait, a |

length, by Sir Godfrey Kneller, is in the beauty room at Petworth

House, belonging to Lord Lecontield. She has a small head, fair hair

and regular features, but is not strikingly handsome. Swift, her

bitter enemy, suma up her character thus :
" Three furies raged in

her breast—the most mortal enemies of all softer passions—which

were sordid avarice, disdainful pride, and ungovernable rage."

P. 120, L 9. Thomas Jenyns. In 1666 Lord Castlemaine

bought H. Jenyns' and Tom Jenyns' houses in the Savoy, the

latter for £1130. They were, it appears, his nephews. Some of these

houses were in the " Dutchy Lane " and one by " Mr Pushworth's."

The two Jenyns then became Lord Castlemaine's tenants. Lady

Palmer died at Windsor May 31, 1666, and was buried at Hendon

June 4. In the executors' account is the following item :—For

mourning, Mr Jenyns £10.

On March 26, 1665, an agreement was made between Lord

Castlemaine and Eoger Jenyns, whereby the latter (in lieu of all

pretence to the office in Wales held by him, or by Mr Wilkinson

in trust for him) was to have the house which he held in the Savoy

rent free for seven years ending Lady Day 1672. Dec. 27, 1666,

Poger Jenyns sells his houses to Lord Castlemaine. See Brit. Mus.

add. MSS. 12,676.

P. 127, 1. 3. For Bucks read Berks.

P. 127, 1. 27. George Jenyns. Since the above was wi-itten we

regret to have to record his death, which took place at Bottisham

Hall, Ap. 13, 1^78. He was buried at Bottisham Church with his

ancestors Ap. 18.

P. 127, 1. 33. Soarae Jenyns. We also have with regret to

record the somewhat sudden death of this distinguished officer, Nov.

26, 1873, at Bowton Lodge in Shropshire, the seat of Lord Wenlock.

He had then been but lately promoted to the responsible position of

Assistant Adjutant-General at head-quarters. On Dec. 3, 1873, he
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was buried witli full military honours at Bottisham Church. A
party of the 13th Hussare, his former regiment, numbering 150 men,

under the command of Captain Pole, came down to Cambridge by

special train and found their way on to Bottisham Hall. The park

being thrown open to the public a large number of persons assembled

in front of the Hall to witness the starting of the cortege, which took

place at about one o'clock. The firing party being told off, the

remainder of the Hussars, except of course the band, formed two

lines, one on either side of the carriage drive leading from the Hall to

the stately avenue, and through these two lines the procession passed.

First came the firing party, two abreast, followed by the band.

After this and immediately preceding the hearse walked the Rev. H.

Huleatt, the chaplain of the Forces, who wore three medals. Follow-

ing the hearse came the late Colonel's horse. Then came four

mourning coaches containing the following. In the first were H.

Thompson, Esq., of Moorlands, Yorkshire ; G. Thompson, Esq.,

H. Young, Esq., and the Rev. F. G. Jenyns (brother of the deceased).

In the second : Col. Tremayne, Major Jervis, and Mr Goad. In the

third were Capt. Webb, Caj)t. Hayne, Mr C. Jenyns, and Mr Smith.

In the fourth : Mr C. W. Townley, Mr E. Hicks, Mr C. P. Allix,

and Mr C. Francis. The rear was brought up by the officers and

men of the 13th Hussars. As soon as the procession started the

band struck up the solemn strains of the " Dead march in Saul,"

continued by the organ on arriving at the church until all the people

were seated.

The coffin, placed on a bier in the centre aisle, was covered with

a pall, and on it lay three beautiful wreaths of flowers and the

deceased's sword and cocked-hat. The Rev. J. B. Mc Clellan, Vicar

of Bottisham, read the opening sentences and the 39th Psalm, and

the Rev. H. Huleatt read the lesson from 1 Cor. xv.

The cofiin was then lowered into the family vault. The last

portion of the 142ud hymn, in Hymns Aiicient and Modern, was

then sung, after which the remainder of the burial service was con-

ducted by the Vicar. This being concluded and the blessing pro-

nounced, at a given signal the firing party outside the church, near

the vault, fired three volleys, and the ceremony was ended.

S. H. B.
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The following monuments were in Hayes Church :—

•

Jane^ wife of Kic. Husband, daur. of John Jenyns, Esq., d. 1728.

Borothy, wife of John Jenyns, daur. of Wm. Bromley, of Holt

Castle, relict of Cleobury, eldest son of Right Hon. Wm. Bromley,

of Bayington, d. 1720.

Roger Jenyns, d. 1693.

Thomas Jenyns, d. 1696.
)

T r r T T \ Lords of the manor.
James, son oj John Jenyns. }

Pedigree of Jenyns :—
Jane, d. of James Clitheroe. Add, d. 1727—8, Feb. 20.

Roger Jenyns, of Windsor. Add, buried at Clewer.

Dorothy Harvey. Add, of Buckenham, Norfolk.

Elizabeth Eioen. Add, Nov. 1779, buried at Clewer.

Mary Soame. Add, married May, 1726 (£10,000 portion). Vide

Le Neve's notes, Norf Arch. vol. ii. p. 385.

George Jenyns. Add, d. Ap. 13, 1878, bur. Ap. 18, at Bottisham.

Soame Jenyns. Add,di. Nov. 26, bur. Dec. 3, 1873, at Bottisham.

P. 129. Frances Harriet, daur. of Rev. J. S. Henslaw. Add,

d. 1874.

Joseph Hooker. Add, C.B., Pres. of the Poyal Society.

P. 132, 1. 1. Note. Wm. Wolf de Ely had licence to celebrate

mass in his oratory granted for one year, Ap. 15, 1374 a. d.

Add, Wm. Wells Yintner, mayor of Cambridge in 1662, left to

his son Wm. Wells and his heirs the Talbot, in the parish of St

Clement, and his lands, &c., in Bottisham, Foxton, and Ely. See

his will dated July 24, 17 Car. II. Pro. July 29, 1667, Harl. MSS.

4115, fol. 17.

The following deed relates to the family of Lorkyn in Bottisham :

" Know all present and future that I Lawrence Lorkyn de

Bodekisham have given conceded and this my present charter con-

firmed to John Ansty Knight, John Candeler, Thomas Hervy and

Robert Southam one tenement lying in Bodekisham Lode near the

tenement of Geoffrey Cotoun on one side and le meddogate of the prior

of Anglesey on the other side and abutts on the water of the old

Lode and the meadow of the aforesaid prior of Anglesey of seven

poles and two feet and contains in longitude between the convent of

the prior of Anglesey called the meddogate on the south side and

the common more on the north side 14 poles and contains in latitude

from the meadow of the aforesaid prior up to the tenement of

Geoffery Cotoun 18 feet which tenement I lately held of the gift

and enfeoffment of Guido Qnye, clerk, to have and to hold the said

2 9
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tenement with all its appurtenances to the said John Ansty John

Candeler Thomas Hervey and Robert Soiithara their heirs and

assigns of the head lords of that fee by service thence due and by the

customs of the manor for ever. In witness of which to this present

charter I have affixed my seal, these being witnesses : Thomas Bunte,

senr.j Richard Chaundeler, Thomas Bunte, junr., Thomas Moris,

Wm. Hervy and others. Given at Bodekisham aforesaid on the

Monday next before the feast of the conversion of St Paul in the

year of King Henry the sixth after the conquest of England the

twenty-fifth." See New Record OffijCe, Augmentation Office, Mis-

cellaneous charters, Vol. xviii.

PART II.

Note. The references quoted hereafter, unless specially mentioned,

are of two kinds. Thus where a number is preceded by a letter

reference is made to New Record Office, Chapter House, Miscellaneous

Boxes, Diocese of Ely hags ; as, for example, D. 57. Where two num-

bers, Roman and Arabic, are quoted they denote New Record Office,

Augmentation Office, Miscellaneous charters, volume, and number of

document.

P. 155, 1. 5. For Innocent XXIT. read Innocent lY.

P. 155, 1. 8. For Nicholas V. read Nicholas IV.

P. 158, 1. 31. For Libat read Lib'at.

P. 159, L 35. Mr John King. Note. He died in 1873, and

was succeeded by his son, Mr Frederick King.

P. 165, Note. Richard Rellian. He was M.A., F.R.S., F.L.S.,

chaplain of King's College, and rector of Hemingby, Lincolnshire.

P. 170, 1. 32. Saint Lawrence. (?) Whether this is not the

private seal of Master Lawrence de Saint Nicholas mentioned p. 340.

P. 173, 1. 10. For Italy read Africa.

P. 174. List of Priors, <ke. Note. Wm. de Fordham occurs in

1254. Walter de Yelvedon occurs in 1352, and therefore immediately

preceded Richard de Wrattinge. John Huy is probably the same

as John Hervey, Hervey being written Huy. John Daniel was

living in 1463, for he was then still receiving his pension mentioned

on page 297. Jolin Leverington. (?) The same as J. L., elected Prior

of Barnwell in 1489, and installed September the 3rd and died Nov.



NOTES AND ADDITIONS. 25

30, 1496. Tanner says lie was elected Prior of Anglesey in 1489.

George Holland. April 16, 1508, mandate to install him, the pre-

sentation having devolved upon the Bishop of Ely for this time.

P. 175. In the return of chaplains, &a, made in 1379, we find

Semannus Harper, Robt. Alayn, and Wm.
P. 176, note 2. Add, He also enjoined him to do penance, and

on entering the Chapter House to ask pardon of his fellow monks, all

which John Myntemoor humbly promised to do. Done in the

ju'esence of the Prior and sub-Prior of Anglesey, Master Richard le

Scrop, official of the Bishop, Thomas do Dalby, and Walter Assbe,

canons of Sarum, and Thomas de Castro Bernardi.

P. 181. Charter of Baldwin de Scalariis. 8ee D. 3.

P. 181, Charter of Juliana, daughter of Baldwin. D. 9.

P. 181. Hngh^ son of Augustin. See note infra to p. 245.

P. 182. Charter of Alice, widow of Philip. See D. 1.

P. 183. Charter of Richard Le Brun. See D. 30.

P. 183. Charter of Robert, son of Hugh. See xix. 32.

P. 184. Land at Haslingfield, See vii. 131, and xix. 221.

P. 184, 1. 8. J^o date. Note. About 1251 A. d.

P. 184. Charter of Henry Freeman. See xvi. 14.

P. 184. Charter of Walter de Westley. See xii. 249.

P. 184. Charter of Ralph Matefrey. See xix. 154.

P. 184, 1. 33. At a later date. See vii. 8.

P. 184. Charter of Ralph, son of Matilda. See xx. 192.

P. 185. Confirmation. See v. 62.

P. 185. Charter of Harvey, son of Seleda. See vii. 36.

P. 185. Purchase of tenement. See xix. 39.

P. 185. Quit-claim. See xv. 112.

P. 185. Charter of Walter le Newe. See D. 4.

P. 185. Charter of Roger, son of Ceroid. See D. 2.

P. 186. Charter of Roger, son of Richard. See D. 8.

P. 190, 1. 15. For severall re«c^ several,

P. 191. Charter of Walter, son of Philip. See D. 32. There

was also a grant of this land for 6 marks of silver from Walter le

New to Walter de Wilbraham, to be given to any except a house of

religion. See Ghaitter House, Domestic Deeds, s. d. No. 60, also

Miscellaneous Boxes, diocese of Ely, Bag B, No. 148. In another

deed of the above-mentioned charter there are these variations :

—

For Geoffrey Newman, Robert Newman ; Cambesfield, Cambelfield
;

Alward, Aluard ; Stretebrede, Stratebrede!; furlong, quarantein

;

Deresle, Direst.
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P. 192. Charter of rent from Sparne. See D. 6.

P. 192. Quit-claim. See D. 28.

P. 193. Charter of Ralph Candos. See D. 11.

P. 193. Quit-claim. See D. 7.

P. 193. Charter of Walter le New. See D. 13.

P. 193. Add, Walter, the son of Wm., rector of Wilhraham

Parva, gives in frank almoigne 1 acre in Wilbraham in Middlefield,

lying between the land of Wm. Talemash and William Emmes,

abutting on the headland of E-ichard Aluard. See xvi. 300.

P. 194. Another charter. See D. 29.

P. 196. Master Lawrence de Saint Nicholas. See D. 33 and 38.

P. 198. See D. 37.

P. 199. Whereas, &c. See D. 35 and 36.

P. 201. Add, Yide also D. 34, in which document mention is

made of 20 acres in Bottisham and Wilbraham, " ad fabricam ecclesie

nostre et ad constructionem capitnli, claustri et camere prioris."

Dated Anglesey, 2 Calends June 1236. Appended is the confirma-

tion of Hugh de Balsham, Bishop of Ely.

P. 202. Charter of Wm., son of Maiuer. See D. 20.

Grant of Wm. the cook. See D. 15. (?) The same as William

Cocus, of Standon, who granted to Roger, son of Eustace, for homage

and service 7^ acres in Standon, producing a rental of 20d. a year.

He also granted to Hugh de Bodekesham all his lands in Pohendene

(or Pochendene) and the rent and service of Hubert de Standon and

his heirs due from 1 J acres of meadow which they held for 21d. a

year, rendering to him l'2d. For which grant Hugh gave 25^. id.

*' in gersumia." Adam, the son of William Cocus, granted to Hugh
de Bodekesham all the lands he granted to Roger, son of Eustace, in

Standon, 1 acre of Pain, and 2 acres of croft of Ailwin the deaf near

the land of Richard de Melkele, and all the land which is called

Blowenlee, rendering yearly 2s. ; also all the lands in Pohendene and

the rent and service of Hubert de Standon, and for this Hugh quit-

claimed him and his mother and his heirs in all the land which was

of Geoffrey le Ride, and besides gave him 6O5. sterling. (Hugh must

have granted this to the house of Anglesey, for the deed is endorsed

**ad Angleseie.") Among the witnesses occur Domiuus Richard

Comes de Clare, Richard frater ejus. See ChajHer House Domestic

Deeds, s. d. Nos. 101, 102, 116.

P. 202. Grant of William, son of Roger Curteys. See D. 17.

Also Walter le New grants to Roger Curteys for homage and 2^

marks of silver, 3 roods between the land of Augustus, son of Walter,
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and Bo<;er tlie clerk, abuttinor on the road to Horseheatli. See

Chapter House Domestic Deeds, s. d. No. 46.

P. 203. Pension to Sir Pichard, rector of Melbourn. The

original of this document is believed to be in the possession of

Edward Hailstone, Esq., Walton Hall, near Wakefield.

P. 204, lines 36, 37. For St Mary read St Cyriac, and for St

Cyriac read St Mary.

P. 209, 1. 23. 27 August, 1341, licence to let to farm the church

of St Mary for 3 years.

P. 209, 1. 35. Shadewarfe. In 1478 John Collinson, rector of

Over and archdeacon of Northampton, founded a fellowship at

Queens'. The college then purchased with part of the money the

manor of Shadworth in Swaffham Prior, and estates at Stan-

bourn and Motts in the county of Essex. See Searle, Hist, of

Queens' Coll.

P. 209, 1. 36. Cotellys. {%) A mistake for Totellys, the manor

of the family of Tothill, of one member of which there is a brass in

the parish church.

P. 210. Charter of Alan le Fraunceys. See D. 40. In 1270

A.D. he was lord of Badlingham in the parish of Chippenham.

P. 210. Charter of Martin Chamberlain. See D. 26. And
also Augmentation Office Miscellaneous Charters, x. 64 and x. 182.

P. 211. Pedigree of Chamberlain. Andrew de Bures had the

advowson of Little Wilbraham, so that it would descend to his two

coheirs.

P. 211. Power of Attorney. See D. 14.

P. 213. Charter of Philip, son of Roger. See D. 10.

P. 214. Charter of Adam de Lodebroc. See D. 39.

P. 214. Charter of Bartholomew the Clerk. See D. 5.

P. 215, 1. 10. Now in the tenure of John le Lord is in a later

hand.

P. 215. Charter of Alice Talmasche. See D. 23. Also 4 Hen. III.

Quit-claim from the Prior and convent of Anglesey to Lady Alice

Talemasch of all land they held of her in Wilbraham Parva, to farm

with all the plough, viz. 2 oxen and 2 horses and all utensils pertain-

ing to the plough and houses within the court, together with the

manure and hay of the same year. They agreed to destroy all writings

and documents and Lady Alice to do the same, and quit them of all

action on her part. See ii. 217.

P. 215, 1. 34. After Humphrey, add widow. The document is

dated 48 Hen. IIL See ix. 123.
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P. 216. Charter of Robert de Mildenhale. See D. 25.

P. 217. Charter of John, son of Yvo. See D. 24.

P. 217. Charter of Robert the Preacher. See D. 19.

P. 217. Charter of Isabella, daughter of the above. See D. 18.

P. 217. Charter of Geoffrey de Scaceario. See D. 12.

P. 218. Charter of Roger de Scaceario. See D. 21, and Chapter

House Calendar of Domestic Deeds, s. d. No. 14.

P. 218. Charter of Sarra, widow of John de Fulney. See D. 41.

P. 221, 1. 16. Fine, dated 1261 a.d. See xi. 254.

P. 222. Memorandum. See D. 42, and bags A and B.

P. 223, last line. Lease. See xvi. 126.

P. 224. Lease, 20 Ed. IIL See xv. 115.

P. 224. Lease, 13 Ed. IV. See v. 209.

P. 224. Charter of Eustace, son of Roger. See D. 16. Also

grant of a messuage with a croft at a rent of 18c/. by Wm. Talmasch,

with the consent of his wife Alice Talmasch. See Chapter' House

Domestic Deeds, s. d. Nos. 21 and 40. Also, grant of Hillary to

Eustace, son of Roger, of ^ acre in Westfields for homage and services,

and 196\ rent. See ib. ib. No. 20.

P. 224. Also grant by Walter le New to Eustace, son of

Roger, of land containing 7 perches by 28 perches for 4 marks of

silver, see ib. ib. No. 24.

P. 225, 1. 4. Omit '^ and this is the only indication we have

of the existence of a separate church for that parish." Wilbrahani

Regis is the same as Great Wilbraham.

P. 225, 1. 17. A'^ote. For the descent of Fulk de Shepreth

and Ralph his son, see Add. MSS. 5954, fo. 54. In 1273 a.d. a

convention was made between Ralph, son of Ralph, son of Fulc,

miles, and the Prior and convent of Anglesey, stating that the said

Ralph gave all the lands they held of him in Barley in frank almoigne.

They therefore agreed to pay 8 marks annually to Ralph for the

fine. See x. 170.

P. 239. List of possessions in Cambridge. See T>. 31.

P. 240, 1. 3. For Se(man^) read Seleda.

P. 240, 1. 4. For Ichath (? Ralph) read (? ruschach).

P. 240, Note 1. See xii. 140.

P. 241. These Latin verses seem to be the unfinished exercise

of some scholar. In the document line 3 runs thus :

—

''aut tu redde..,imes an desine velle vocari."

P. 241, 1. 6, read:

Anglicus judicus hie quintus utcrque Deo.
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P. 241, 1. 7, cf.

" O rex, si rex es, rege te vel eris sine re, rex

;

Nomen liabes sine re, nisi te recteque regas rex."

Political Poems, ed. Wright, i. 278.

Also :

^' Dimi rex a regere dicatiir nomen habere,

Nomen habet sine re nisi stiidet jura tenere."

Vision of Piers the Ploughrnan. Prologue, 141.

P. 241, I 10, read:

Flecte parens Christ! natum p'c quern...

P. 241, 1. 12, read:

Quod quia jus hue est. Do veniam fri.

P. 241. Omit notes 2, 3, 4.

P. 242. Thomas de Luton. See D. 44. Weudedytton seems

to have been an error for Fenditton.

P. 243. Will of Sir Symon. See D. 43.

P. 243. Charter of Thomas de Burgo. See D. 27. ? If not of

earlier date.

P. 246. See D. 45.

P. 249. To about this date must be assigned the following deed :

Roger Prior of Anglesey, conveys to John de Bodekisham, Matilda,

his wife, and John, his firstborn son, for life their messuage, with the

right to sublet, and at a rental of 12d. a year, which Margaret Basset

formerly held at the convent in W^ilbraham Parva, between the

messuage of formerly John the Chamberlain and James Le, and

abutting on the church. See Chapter House Calendar ofDomestic Deeds,

s.d. No. 19.

P. 250. Confirmation of the election of Walter de Withersfield.

See D. 48.

P. 251. Ivor le lardiner. See D. 49.

P. 251. In 1322 a.d. The Prior of Anglesey is requested to

raise as many men-at-arms, and foot-soldiers, as he can march against

the adherents of the Earl of Lancaster, the muster to take place at

Coventry on the first Sunday in Lent, viz. Feb. 28. The writ

tested at Gloucester, 16 Feb. 15 Ed. II. See Parliamentary Writs,

Part I. p. 550, No. 54.

P. 251. 1 date. Petition of the Priory of Anglesey to be ex-

cused payment of a tenth, the letter demanding it being received

from Symond Blakeburn, Serjeant-at-arms. See Exchequer Misc.

Vol. IV.
-gl",

and Chapter House Calendar Domestic Deeds, s. d.

No. 111.
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P. 260, Note 2. See Charter of Prior of Anglesey to Heniy

de Colingliam, of these messuages, &c., dated Anglesey, 20 Ed. III.

XI. 8, Also ib. ib. ix. 152. Grant of these lands, &c. with course

and right offoldage for 200 sheejJ. If prohibited from foldage, to

pay 2 marks less until restored by suit of Prior and Convent of

Anglesey. Also to keep the 12 marks as long as the Prior and

Convent of Anglesey refuse to be bound by the chantry founded by

Eliz. de Burgh, as long as Henry de Colingham is alive and farmer

of tlie same lands, the Prior and Convent of Anglesey will receive

nothing, nor for that year in which he dies, unless he has left some-

thing to the Prior and Convent of Anglesey. Dated at Anglesey the

Sunday after the conversion of St Paul 1351, A. d.

P. 261. Licence to the Prior and Convent of Walsingham. See

XIII. 217.

P. 261. Indenture between Eliz. de Burgh and the Prior and

Convent of Anglesey. See Augmentation Office Misc. Charters,

K. 72.

P. '2iQ>2,. In a deed, Wm. Alington mentions that the Prior and

Convent of Anglesey were exonerated from finding two secular

chaplains for Eliz. de Burgh, so long as they celebrated, one at the

altar of the Holy Cross in the church at Anglesey and the other

in the chapel in Bottisham, every day for the king and queen and

Wm. Alington and Joane his wife. Now he releases them of this

and binds them both to celebrate at Anglesey. Dated his manor

of Bottisham, Mar. 26, 1477.—Agreement of John Prior of Anglesey,

stating that the two canons should be exonerated of all other employ

except masses, and were to receive weekly 14 pence between them

besides what they received as canons. Dated Anglesey, Mar. 28.

Batification of the Bishop, no date. See Cole MSS.

P. 263. Grant of Wm. de Gosfield. See D. 50 and 51.

P. 263. 1336, A.D. About this time the priory was visited

by the ''Rolliger," who brought the mortuary roll of Bp. Hotham

aud demanded their prayers. Bp. H. died Jan. 1336-7. See Camb.

Ant. Soc. Communications, Vol. i. p. 139.

P. 266. See Augmentation Office Charters, L. 17.

P. 268. Lease of lands. See Diocese of Ely bags, A and B.

P. 270, 1. 20. For John, sons, read Joan, son and daughter.

Note. Sir John de Cambridge gave all his property to the guild

of Corpus Christi. They then exchanged their principal hostel with

Gonvile Hall for their site in Lurteburgh lane. Thus Gonvile

Hall held the site of the principal house of Sir John, opposite to
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St Michael's hostel, of the Prior and Convent of Anglesey. Richard

de Wrattinge, Prior, grants them this for a yearly rental of 3s. which

in 37 Hen. VIII. they paid to the king. On June 24, 1337, Walter,

Prior of Anglesey, and Convent demised for 40 years to Robert de

Mildenhall, the Master, and Scholars of Michael House, a curtilage

in the parish of St Michael which lay in length from, a messuage

of Michael House pertaining to the Rectory of St Michael at the

east head unto a messuage formerly of John de Cambridge, knight,

at the west, and lay in breadth nccir the Stonehouse of the said Prior

on the south, and near a certain lane, formerly common, on the north.

Henney, called also Henne Abbey, Henabay, or Henably, was

granted by the Prior and Convent of Anglesey to the King, 28

Hen. YI. on Friday eve of St Peter and St Paul, who in 33 Hen. VI.

granted it to the town to be used as a common way from Milne-street

to the water called the Ree. Some of this ground the town granted

to Michael House in order to enlarge Garret Hostel. In 1544, the

town grant to Trin. Hall the garden called Henahly. In 154-5, the

fellows' garden to the north of Trin. Hall is granted them by the

master and fellows of Michael House. With reference to the vacant

place in the parish of Saint John (mentioned in p. 228 of this

history), in 10 Ed. III. the Prior and Convent of Anglesey gave

licence to Joan, widow of John de Cambridge, knight, to grant

to the house of St Michael a waste place in the parish of St John,

formerly built upon between the messuage of John de Cumberton

on the north and the tenement of John de Cambridge on the south,

one head abutting on Milne-street on the west, the other on the

tenement of John de Cambridge on the east. See Reports of the

Town Commissioners of Cambridge. Thos. de Cambridge died in

1361. His widow and executrix, Margaret, was married afterwards

to Robert de Bassingbourne. His sister Isabel was a nun at

St Rhadegund's, and Joan de Cambridge, who died in 1487, was

probably a descendant.

P. 270. Grant to W. Chanium. See D. 22. This deed is not

sealed, and there are no witnesses. Qu. therefore if ever executed ?

P. 271, 1. 10. For neve 7'ead neue.

P. 271, 1. 18. Gates. The expression used is per portas

nostras intermedias.

P. 271. Lease to John Fifere. See iii. 89.

P. 271. In 1431 the Bishop of Ely was at Anglesey, for he

dated a licence from there on the fourth of the ides of July.

P. 271. Grant of John Madeffray. See D. 52.
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P. 271. Lease to Jolm Sutton the younger. See D. 53 and

54.

P. 271. In 1342, Dec. 12, John de Sutton granted to Wm.
Arderne and Nicholas Tone a messuaoje in Wilbraham Magna. See

Chapter House Calendar Domestic Deeds, No. 49.

P. 273. Title. For Grant of Sir Thomas de Cheddeworth, read

uonarum inquisitiones.

P. 279. Grant of John Byssop. See D. 55.

P. 280. Note. For Aug. Office Eecords read Aug. Office Misc.

Charters, iv. 53.

P. 280. In 1346, on the Thursday after the feast of St Denis,

Bp. Lisle visited the monastery.

P. 285. Pleas concerning Barley. See Cotton MSS. Julius,

A. 1, fo. 176, b.

P. 286, L 17. For Elbeslee read Elteslee.

P. 287. Lease to Alan Redhed. See C. 54.

P. 289. Lease to John and Hawise Teye, see ii. 157. For avise

read Hawise. For In...Westfield read in great Westfi eld. For in

Adburghdane read in long Adburghdane. u^or John Clede...near a

read John Gledeseye near a. For upon the... street read upon Theve

street. For lease of this land to John Sabyn and wife Margaret by

the convent temp. Richard de Wratting, see xii. 234. In this docu-

ment the acre and a half in Churchfield is described as abutting on

the highway leading to Scharpenho, and the acre at Stoyle as the

land which Wm. Thorp held of Nicholas Burnel, knight.

P. 290. Lease to Robert Passelewe. See iv. 163.

P. 293. Two vacant places of land. This tenement lay with

others in the parish of St John, Milne-street, and was built upon for

St Austin's Hostel. The abuttals were north. New-lane; south.

Nut-lane or Plutes-lane ; east, the tenement of Corpus Christi College
;

west, Milne-street; length by Nut-lane 235 feet, by New-lane 205

feet, east end 63 feet, west end 93 feet.

P. 294. Pardon. See Augme7itation Office Misc. Charters,

H. 94. It also extended to their having held lands in mortmain

without licence. Adam Moleyns, Bishop of Chichester, was mur-

dered Jan. 9, 1449— 50. For an account of him, see Stephen's

Memorials of Chichester, p. 150.

P. 299. Grant of John HaddofF. See D. 56 and 57.

P. 300. In 12 Hen. YIL Feb. 7, Robert Rede and Thomas
Woode, justices, made an award in an arbiti-ation relative to certain

disputes connected with the chantry of Rieott, dedicated to Saint
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Michael, between John Wells, Pi-ior, and the Convent of Anglesey,

and Richard Payne, master of the chantry, who claimed an annual

rent of 21 5. Gd. and suit of fealty out of lands in "Wilbraham Parva.

Each party hound themselves in j£40 sterling to obey the award.

This was as follows : (I) the Prior and Convent to hold the lands

and tenements of Pichard Payne and his successors, except a close

of the said Prior and Convent lying in the lialke by the service of

175. a year, and fealty to be paid at Easter and Michaelmas in

equal portions. 2. To pay next Ascension Day 17s. for a whole

year ending at Easter following, and to be discharged of all arrears.

The said Richard Payne to confirm the title of the Prior and Convent

to the lands. See v. 240.

P. 302. Thomas Falke, official to the Archdeacon of Norfolk in

1533.

P. 307. Wm. Fayrhayr, Vicar of SwaiFham St Cynac.

P. 307. John Eccleston, Vicar of Shelford Magna, Master of

Jesus College, died Feb. 15, 1516— 7.

P. 307. Richard Henrison, Rector of Milton,

P. 308. In an account of a loan from the spiiituality in 14 Hen.

VII. for the recovery of the crown in France^ the Prior is assessed

at £100.

P. 313. Courts were also held under Thomas Lokton, steward,

in 4 Ed. IV. May 24, 2 Ed. IV. June 11, John Wellys being Prior,

5 Ed. IV. July 18, 6 Ed. IV. Oct. 9, 7 Ed. IV. Oct. 1, 9 Ed. IV.

April 22, 10 Ed. IV. June 14, 11 Ed. IV. June 21, At a court

held 22 Hen. VIII. Oct. 24, Thomas Talbot miles had succeeded

Thomas Taylor ; and at a court held 23 Hen. VIII., May 4, Edward

Bowyer died, who held 1 messuage and 11 acres, formerly Draper's.

The property was conceded to Agnes his wife, for her life, for the

use of his son Wm. and his heirs, at a rent of II5 and suit of court.

See Miscellanea Treasury, f|^.

P. 314. Note 1. John Boner was buried at Brinkley Nov. 30,

1558, see extract from parish registers in Cole MSS. There is now
no entry of burials earlier than 1685, and no trace of any tomb.

In a certificate of church goods, dated 1552^ a John Bonyercl &\g\\^

his name as a parishioner of Chatteris. 1 the same.

P. 316. Stow-Quye. About 1583, Corpus Christi College

bought lands in Stow-Quy of Sir Francis Hynde, about the title

of which there was afterwards some dispute. The annual rental

was £^5. In 1749, 11 acres 2 roods of fen land, held of the manor

of Anglesea cum Bottishara, adjoining college land, was bought for
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£25 by the same college. See Masters' Hist, of Corpus Christi

College, pages 118 and 197.

P. 318. Dullingham. In 1 Elizabeth the grantee was Wm. Herde.

Mem. and particulars rated for Richard Allington, Jan. 26, 1559.

See Eecord Office. Particulars for grants.

P. 318. Patent, and James, part 19, No. 9, Grant 4, John

Eldred, ar., and Jone Yerdon, gen., Anglesey Manor and lands, &c,,

in Wilbraham Magna and Parva, Barnwell, Hinton ; in Thurlow

Parva, the tenement of William Wisbeach ; in Swaffham Bulbeck,

that of Wm. Rudston ; Swaffham Prior, in the tenure late of Thomas

Edwards, now of Roger Rant; in Wicken, Thornhall, leased to Leonaixl

Messinger, in the tenure of Isaac Barrow; Cockhampsted, Cam-

bridge; the Stonehouse conceded Feb. 14, 36 Hen. YIII. to Richard

Taverner; Steple and Guilden Morden conceded 29 Oct., 35

Hen. "VIII., to John Suester, and perquisites of court of the manor

of Anglesey, altogether £24. 95. U^d. Cf. p. 334, note.

P. 318. The Stonehouse. Grant 36 Hen. VIII., March 6.

Robert Lane, baker, bought of Wm. Allynson, alderman of Lincoln,

parcel of his orchard pertaining to his Inn called the Lamb, alias

the Stonehouse, in the parish of Saint Michael (now the site of the

new Court of Caius), being in length east to west, north part, 63 feet

2J in.; on south part 75 feet 6f in. ; on June 2, 1565, he sold them

to John Caius, M.D.

P. 321, line 8. Jbr Stavey o^ead Savoy,

P. 325. Grant to John Hynde. See Patent roll, 30 Hen. YIII.

part 1.

P. 327. John Hynde was in 1520 made recorder of Cambridge.

P. 328, line 7. Sir Erancis Hynde held also a tenement in

Bottisham, late of Hinchinbrook nunnery, and after the dissolution

granted to Henry Cromwell, alias Williams.

P. 329. Additions to pedigree of Hynde.

Sir Edward Hynde married (2) Mary, daughter of — Norton,

and (3) Barbara, daughter of — Powell, who = 1 Francis Dayrell,

and (2) Eusebius Andrew of Edmonton. See Cole MSS., Yol. i.

Barbara died Apr. 26, 1668, aged 89.

Anthony Hynde married... daughter of..,Gostwick of Willington,

Beds.

Edward Hynde, son of the last, w^as of Girton. Died before his

grandfather, from a fall from his horse. He married (1) Agnes,

daughter and coheir of Sir Thomas Maples, of Longstow, who after

his death was married to John Stewkley.
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P. 330. Family of Fowkes. See Patent 38 Eliz., part 3, mem.

4. March 2, for £13. Gs. 8d. paid to the crown, licence granted to

Wm. Hynde, ar. to alienate the manor of Anglesey and appurtenances,

and 10 messuages, 30 cottages, 30 tofts, 2 dovecotes, 20 gardens,

10 appleyards, 500 acres of land, 30 acres of meadow, 50 acres of

pasture, 20 acres of wood, 1000 acres of more, 1000 acres of fresh

marsh, 500 acres of turbary, 10 acres of alders, 200 acres of heath

and underwood, QOs. rent, liberty of foldage, and sheep-conrse for

500 sheep, and right of fishery in the waters of Bottisham, with

appurtenances in Bottisham, Stow-Quy, Swaffham Bulbeck, and

Horningsey, to John Folks and Richard Folks.

P. 330. Spehnan, Sir Henry, born 1562, died 1641. The His-

tory of Sacrilege was published in 1698, London, 8vo. ; 2nd ed. 8vo.

1846 and 1853, London, edited by two Priests. In 2nd ed. p. 257, is

the account above mentioned. The work was commenced in 1612,

and the last entry is dated Nov. 22, 1634. The visit to Anglesey

was probably about 1615 or 1616.

P. 331. Thomas Hobson. Buried in St Benet's church, Cam-

bridge, in the chancel, Jan. 12, 1630.

P. 331. Lady Clarke. Wm. Hays, or Hayes, owner of certain

manors in Guilden Morden, died 1617. The epitaph in the church

states that he married the daughter of Thomas Hobson, who after

his death was married to Sir Simon Clarke, Bart.

P. 332. Family of Parker. Fuller mentions in his list of Sheriffs

in 1628 Thomas Parker, arm., but Gardner, in his Gazeteery gives for

the same year Thomas Park, Esq., Wisbech. Qu. which is right,

P. 333. Rt. Hon. Sir George Downing, Bart. K.C.B., M.P. for

Dunwich, died June 10, 1749.

\* Note. In the preceding pages the following abbreviatioijs

are used

:

comp. for compounded for firstfridts.

occ. ,, occurs.

res. „ resigned.

cambkidge: printed by c. j. clay, m.a. at the university press.
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IV. An application of heraldry to the illustration of University and
Collegiate Antiquities. By H. A. Woodham, A.B. Part I. 1841.
With illustrations.

V. An application of heraldry, &c. By H. A. Woodham, M.A. Part
II. 1842. With illustrations.

*^* Nos. IV. and V. together, 95. Qd.

VI. A Catalogue of the MSS. and scarce books in the library of ^t
John's College. By M. Cowie, M.A. Part I. 1842.

VII. A description of the Sextry Barn at Ely, lately demolished. By
Professor Willis, M.A. 1843. With 4: plates. Zs.

VIII. A Catalogue of the MSS. and scarce books in the library of St
John's College. By M. Cowie, M.A. Part II. 1843.

*^* Nos. VI. and VIII. togetlier, 9^.

IX. Architectural Nomenclature of the Middle Ages. By Professor
Willis, M.A. 1844. With 3 plates.

X. Roman and Roman-British Remains at and near Shefford. By Sir

Henry Dryden, Bart., M.A. And a Catalogue of Coins from the
same place. By C. W. King, M.A. 1845. With 4c plates. 6s. 6d.

XI. Specimens of College plate. By J. J. Smith, M.A. 1845. With
13 plates. 15s.

XII. Roman-British Remains. On the materials of two sepulchral
vessels found at Warden. By Professor Henslow, M.A. 1846.

With 2 plates. 4s.

^^* Nos. I—XII, with a title-page, form Vol. I. of the Society's Quarto
Publications.

XIII. Evangelia Augustini Gregoriana. A description of MSS. 286 and
197 in the Parker Library. By J. Goodwin, B.D. 1847. Wit/i
11 plates. 20s.

XIV. Miscellaneous Communications, Part I. : I. On palimpsest sepulchral
brasses. By A. W. Franks. With 1 plate. II. On two British
shields found in the Isle of Ely. By C. W. Goodwin, M.A. With
4: plates. III. A Catalogue of the books bequeathed to C. C
College by Tho. Markaunt in 1439. Ed. by J. 0. Halliwell.
IV. The genealogical history of the Freville Family. By A. W.
Franks. With S plates. 1848. 15^.

XV. An historical inquiry touching St. Catharine of Alexandria : to
which is added a Semi-Saxon legend. By C Hardwick, M.A.
1849. With 2 plates. 12s.

*^^ Nos. XIII—XV, with a title-page, form Vol. II of the Society's
Quarto Publications.

REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS. OCTAVO SERIES.

Reports XI—XIX (with Abstract of Proceedings, 1850—59); Commu-
nications, Octavo Series, Nos. I—IX. Nine numbers. 1851—1859.

*** Communications, Octavo Series, Nos. I—IX, with a title-page,

contents and index, form Vol. I of the Society's Antiquarian Com-
inunications. 1859. 11^.

Reports XX—XXIV (with Abstract of Proceedings, 1859—64); Com-
munications, Nos. X—XIV. Five numbers. 1860—1864.

*^* Communications, Nos. X—XIV, with a title-page, contents, and
index, form Vol. II. of the Society's Antiquarian Communications.
1864. 105.

Report XXV (with Abstract of Proceedings, 1864—65); Communica-
tions, No. XV (marked by mistake XIV). 1865. 2s.

Report XXVI (with Abstract of Proceedings, 1865—66) ; Communica-
tions, No. XVI (marked by mistake XV). 18G6. 25.
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Report XXXIII (with Abstract of Proceedings, 1866—73, and Reports
XXVII—XXXII) ; Communications, No. XVII. 1878. 85.

Report XXXVI (with Abstract of Proceedings, 1873—76, and Reports
XXXIV, XXXV) ; Communications, No. XVIII. In the Press.

*:t* Communications, Nos. XV—XVIII, with a title-page, contents,
and index, will form Vol. III. of the Society's Cambridge Anti-
quarian Communications.

Report XXXVII (with Abstract of Proceedings, 1876—77); Communi-
cations, No. XIX. 1878. 35.

Report XXXVIII (with Abstract of Proceedings 1877—78); Communi-
cations, No. XX. In the Press.

PUBLICATIONS. OCTAVO SERIES.
I. The Anglo-Saxon legends of St Andrew and St Veronica. Ed. by

C. W. Goodwin, M.A. 1851. 2^. Qd.

II. Fragment of a Graeco-Egyptian work upon magic. Ed. by C. W.
Goodwin, M.A. 1852. With afacsimile, ^s. Qd.

III. Ancient Cambridgeshire. By C. C. Babington, M.A. 1853. With
4 2ylates and a map. 35. Q,d.

IV. A History of Waterbeach. By W. K. Clay, B.D. 1859. With
3 plates. 5s.

V. The Diary of Edward Rud ; to which are added several letters of

Dr. Beutley. Ed. by H. R. Luard, M.A. 1860. 2s. 6d.

VI. A History of Landbeach. By W. K. Clay, B.D. 1861. With
1 plate. 4s. 6d.

VII. A History of Horningsey. By W. K. Clay, B.D. 1865. 2s. ed.

*^5.* Nos. IV, VI, and VII, with a title-page, form a volume entitled:
' Three Cambridgeshire Parishes : or a History,' &c. 1865. 12s.

VIII. The Correspondence of Richard Person, M.A., formerly Regius
Professor of Greek. Ed. by H. R. Luard, M.A. 1867. 4^. ed.

IX. The History of Queens' College. Part L 1446—1560. By W. G.
Searle, M.A. 1867. Ss.

X. Historical and Architectural Notes on Great St Mary's Church. By
S. Sandars, M.A. Together with the Annals of the Church. By
Canon Venables, M.A. 1869. With 1 2^late. 3s.

XL A History of Milton. By the late W. K. Clay, B.D. 1869. Ss.

*^* Nos. IV, VI, VII, and XI, with a title-page, form a volume entitled:
' Histories of the Four Adjoining Parishes,' &c. 1861—1869. 155.

XII. The Coins, Tokens, and Medals of the Town, County and University
of Cambridge. By W.G. Searle, M.A. 1871. 25.

XIII. The History of Queens' College. Part IL 1560—1662. By W. G.
Searle, M.A. 1871. 85.

XIV. The History and Antiquities of the Parish of Bottisham and of the
Priory of Anglesey. By Edw. Hailstone, Jun. With 7 plates.
1873. 125.

XV. An annotated List of Books printed on vellum to be found in
the University and College Libraries at Cambridge; with an
appendix on the bibhogi-aphy of Cambridge libraries. By S.
Sandars, M.A. 1878. 25.

XVI. A Supplement to the History of the Parish of Bottisham and the
Priory of Anglesey. By Edw. Hailstone, Jun. 1878. I5

Josselin's Historiola Collegii Corporis Christi et Beatae Mariae Canta-
brigiae. Edited by J. W. Clark, M.A. Just readg.

List of books, pamphlets, and single sheets, pubhshed and privately printed,
concerning the University of Cambridge. By W. G. Searle,
M.A. In the Press.

A History of Queens' College. By W. G. Searle, M.A. Part III. In
preparati07i.

November, 1878.
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